
 

 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION (RFQ)  

TENDER NO. RLDA/RFQ/CD-34/SRD-06/2020 

Addendum No. 2FOR PROPOSAL  

In respect of “Request for Qualification (RFQ) for Re-development of Ernakulam Jn. Railway Station, Ernakulam”, following 

addendum has been issued regarding reply of the Pre- bid Meeting Queries held on 25.01.2021 

S. No. 
Clause 

Reference 
Query/Clarification 

Reply from RLDA 

(1) (2) (3) (4) 

1.  1.2.8 Bid Parameter 
Clause: “Bids will be invited for the Project on the 
basis of the highest Annual Concession Fee 
offered (the “Annual Concession Fee”) to the 
Authority for award of the concession. The 
concession period shall be pre-determined and 
will be indicated in the draft Concession 
Agreement forming part of the Bidding 
Documents. The Annual Concession Fee amount 
shall constitute the sole criteria for evaluation of 
Bids. The Project shall be awarded to the Bidder 
quoting the highest Annual Concession Fee. 
Details shall be shared at the RFP stage. In this 
RFQ, the term “Highest Bidder” shall mean the 
Bidder who is offering the highest Annual 
Concession Fee. There may be a fixed upfront 
premium to be paid by successful bidder in 
addition to Annual Concession Fee.”  
 
Suggestion: Increase the upfront payment 
component in the bid 
 
Clarification/Rationale: Requiring a substantial 
payment (up to or greater than 50% of the NPV) 
at takeover once all preconstruction approvals 
and land are provided, would ensure that only 
serious investors and developers bid for this 
project. This aids the government given the 
current fiscal position and incentivizes the 
Concessionaire to complete the development of 
these projects in the shortest possible time 
frame. It also attracts only serious long-term 
players and experienced developers of 

The terms stated in the Clause 
1.2.8 of the RFQ remains the 
same. 
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infrastructure projects 
 

2.  2.2.1 
(C)(vi) 

Consultants 
Clause: “such Applicant, or any Associate thereof 
has participated as a consultant to the Authority 
in the preparation of any documents, design or 
technical specifications of the Project.”  
 
Clarification: We note that M/s KITCO Ltd, M/s 
JLL Property Consultants India Pvt Ltd and M/s 
Anarock Property Consultant Pvt Ltd are listed as 
the technical consultant, financial consultant and 
transaction advisor respectively. Please provide 
list of any other consultants engaged for this 
project, including legal, master planners/ 
architects, etc. 

Following is the list of 
Consultants engaged by RLDA 
for Ernakulam Junction Station 
Redevelopment project: 
 
1. Technical & Architectural 

Consultant: M/s KITCO Ltd. 
 

2. Financial Consultant: M/s JLL 
Property Consultants Pvt. 
Ltd. 

 
3. Transaction Advisor: M/s 

ANAROCK Property 
Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 

3.  PIM 
Salient 
Features 
of the 
Ernakulam 
Junction 
Railway 
Station 
Project 

Point # 7 mentions the following condition for 
development of the Station Estate. 

 40% of station estate to be developed within 3 
years However, during the pre-bid meeting 
held online at 11:00 HRS on 25th Jan 2021, the 
time period stated w.r.t. Station Estate 
Development was 8 years from the Appointed 
Date.  

 
Request for clarification on the above 

Station Estate Development: 
40% of Station Estate to be 
developed within 8 years from 
Appointed Date. 

4.  PIM 
Annexure- 
II Status of 
Approvals 

Point #3 – Could you please confirm that the 
approval from Airport Authority of India w.r.t 
height is not applicable for the Project? Also, 
what is the reason for the approval not being 
applicable? 

It will depend upon the relevant 
rules of Airport Authority of 
India (AAI). 

5.  PIM 
Annexure- 
II Status of 
Approvals 

Point #4 – Could you please confirm that the 
approval from Archaeological Survey of India 
w.r.t Ancient Monument protection is not 
applicable for the Project? Also, what is the 
reason for the approval not being applicable? 

It will depend upon the relevant 
rules of Archaeological Survey 
of India (ASI). 

6.  PIM 
Annexure- 
II Status of 
Approvals 

Environmental Approval  
1. Station - Only an EMP is required or a full EIA 
would need to be carried out?  
2. Station Estate - Only an EMP is required or a 
full EIA would need to be carried out? 

Kindly refer “Annexure-I” for 
details, issued by MoEFCC. 

7.  General During the pre-bid meeting held on 25th Jan 
2021, it was mentioned that the existing bus 
terminus in the vicinity on either side of the 
railway station and the upcoming metro station 
on the west side are supposed to be integrated 

Railway Station modernization 
is envisaged as creating a world-
class transportation hub with 
other modes of public /private 
transport systems e.g. Metro, 
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with the redeveloped railway station.  
 
Does the Authority envisage building a multi 
model transportation hub? If yes, what would be 
the scope of the Concessionaire other than the 
development of the railway station and the 
station estate w.r.t. development related to the 
bus terminus and/or metro station and the 
connectivity to these? 

Bus, Taxis, Auto-Rickshaws etc.  
 
In case of Ernakulam Junction 
Railway station redevelopment 
project, Ernakulam South Metro 
station is proposed to be 
connected to Ernakulam 
Junction Railway station.  
The construction of roads, 
pathways, parking, landscaping 
will be under the scope of 
concessionaire.  
 
Presently, Bus stand is proposed 
to be developed separately by 
the concerned Authority. 
 
Final details shall be shared at 
the RFP stage. 

8.  PIM 
Clause 6.1 

During the pre-bid meeting held on 25th Jan 
2021, it was mentioned that the project is 
envisaged to be developed in two phases with 
Phase-I to be commissioned within 3 years from 
the COD and Phase-II to be commissioned within 
5 years from the COD.  
 
Could you please clarify the following? 
1. As per the Indicative Master Plan Proposal, 

Phase-I and Phase-II also include the 
indicative proposed assets which would be 
part of the Station Estate. Could you please 
clarify whether the Phase-I and Phase-II 
include the Station Estate also which needs 
to be completed within the defined timeline 
given above? 

2. With respect to the #1 above, what 
constitutes Phase-I to be completed within 3 
years? 

3. With respect to the #1 above, what 
constitutes Phase-I to be completed within 5 
years? 

4. Would there be separate / multiple CODs – a 
separate one for each phase? 

5. What all in the Phase-I and Phase-II (as per 
the Indicative Master Plan) does the project 
cost of INR 229 crore constitute? 

The Phase I of the Station 
Development (Mandatory 
Component) has to be 
completed in 3 years’ time 
frame from the Appointed Date 
and Phase II to be developed in 
2 years’ time frame from 
completion of Phase I.  
 
Kindly refer Master Plan for the 
different phase of Station 
Development (Mandatory 
Component). 
 
Station Estate Development: 
40% of Station Estate to be 
developed within 8 years from 
Appointed Date.  
 
The phasing of commercial 
component will come under the 
purview of the Developer.  
 
Phasing shown in the Master 
Plan for commercial component 
is indicative. 
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9.  General It is requested that as part of the project, a State 
Support Agreement - confirming the interest of 
State Government and its support towards the 
project including support in giving approvals for 
the project - be signed. 

RLDA has approached different 
departments of the State for 
their support for development 
of the Station. Following is the 
list of departments with whom 
RLDA has made contact: 
1. Kochi Municipal 

Corporation (KMC) 
2. Kochi Metro Rail Limited 

(KMRL) 
3. Cochin Smart Mission 

Limited (CSML) 

10.   Is the project proponent permitted to make 
qualitative changes in the Master Plan with the 
approval of the concerned authorities? 

Footprint of the overall Master 
Plan shall generally remain the 
same. Changes at the detailed 
engineering stage for value 
addition shall be permissible 
with Authority’s approval.  

11.   The proposed plan talks about a built-up area of 
74,248 sqm for commercial monetization.  This 
includes MLCP, Retail, Commercial (Office) and 
hospitality.  There is no mention about 
Residential development which is a prerequisite 
for such a development to make is commercially 
feasible.  Therefore, we request, that residential 
component of 40-50000 sqm may please be 
included in addition to the commercial 
development proposed in the document. 

The built-up area of commercial 
component is only for indicative 
purpose. Product Mix of Station 
Estate Development may be 
decided by the Developer as per 
his own due diligence. 

12.   The product mix may please be left with the 
project proponent to decide with due approval 
from the authorities. 

The built-up area of commercial 
component is only for indicative 
purpose. It is to be decided by 
the Developer as per his own 
due diligence. 

13.  General As per the clause 1.1.3, the Indicative cost of the 
Project is ~ 229 Crore.  

Kindly let us know when the project cost was 
estimated and a detail cost breakup. 

Estimate has been prepared 
generally on the basis of Plinth 
Area Rates-2019 of Central 
Public Works Department.  

14.  RFQ 2.2.4 
Net worth 
certificate 

RFQ mentions that in case duly certified audited 
annual financial statements containing the 
requisite details are provided, a separate 
certification by statutory auditors would not be 
necessary in respect of Clause 2.2.4. Please 
confirm that if the Schedules to the audited 
financial statements include the details of Share 
Capital, Retained Earning Reserves and Other 
Reserves equitable to the equity shareholders, 

The provisions of Clause 2.2.4 (i) 
of RFQ shall prevail. 
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then Annual financial statements are sufficient 
evidence for the Net worth and separate 
certification is not required. 

15.  RFQ 2.9.1 
(h) 

It contains an attested copy of the receipt of the 
Authority towards the cost of the RFQ process as 
specified in Clause 1.2.1. 

It contains a copy of the receipt of the Authority 
towards the cost of the RFQ process as specified 
in Clause 1.2.1; 

Since this is a System generated receipt, attested 
copy is not required. 

RFQ Clause 2.9.1 does not has 
part (h). However, w.r.t. RFQ 
Clause 2.19.1(h), system 
generated Receipt shall also 
suffice. 

16.  Appendix I 17. The Statement of Legal Capacity as per format 
provided at Annex-V in Appendix-I of the RFQ 
document, and duly signed, is enclosed. The 
power of attorney for signing of Application {and 
the power of attorney for Lead Member of 
consortium}, as per format provided at Appendix 
II and III respectively of the RFQ, are also 
enclosed. 

The text in braces may be omitted in case the 
Applicant is not a Consortium. 

Agreed 

17.  Appendix 
I, Annex II 

6. Certificate from the Applicant’s statutory 
auditor$ or its respective clients must be 
furnished as per formats below for each Eligible 
Project. 

Big 4 statutory auditors issue certificates in their 
own format citing various regulations governing 
them. It is requested that the certificates 
substantially in the required format from 
Statutory Auditor be accepted if they provide all 
the necessary information. 

Provision of RFQ shall prevail. 

18.  Fee 
Collection 

Is the user fee applicable for sub-urban train 
users and railway pass holders? 

What is the methodology for determining the 
user fee for railway pass holders? 

The user fee is still under 
finalization stage and shall be 
notified after getting all the 
approvals. Same shall be shared 
with all the bidders at the RFP 
stage. 

19.  Master 
plan for 
the 
project 

Does the concessionaire have to adhere to the 
Master Plan provided by RLDA or free to make 
modifications to the Master Plan? 

Footprint of the overall Master 
Plan shall generally remain the 
same. Changes at the detailed 
engineering stage for value 
addition shall be permissible 
with Authority’s approval.  
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20.  General How sublease of residential built-up area will be 
done. Is this allowed to sub lease? 

As per extent Rules & 
Regulations, sub-leasing of 
Railway Land is not permissible. 
Only sub lease of built space is 
permissible. 
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